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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIQUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR OF THE LOCAL GOVERNING BOARD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Having been a school governor at CCHS for & very long time, [ took over in March 2016 as the new Chair of
Governars of Clacton County High School Academy Trust and it is with great pleasure and pride that | have been
asked to sum up the 2015-16 academic year.

At the start of the academic year 2015, we were left shell shocked at how the changes to the English marking
boundaries impacted on our students’ results at GCSE in the summer exams and we were determined that this
would not happen again. Staff and students worked incredibly hard throughout the entire year and their efforts
were justly rewarded with a superb set of summer results.

Year on year, we have been working on improving the outcomes of our students and were previously
recognised in 2015 by the then Minster for Education, David Laws, with our schoal achieving within the top 1%
nationally for the progress made by our disadvantaged students.

This year, using the new Progress 8 measure, i.e. looking at where a student’s stands academically on eniry to
this school in comparison to the results that are achieved at GGSE, Clacton County High School is not only the
top school in the whole of Essex, but in the entire eastern region including; Suffolk, Norfolk, Cambridgeshire,
Hertfordshire and Lincolnshire. To put this into a national context our school is 35™ out of over 6,000 schools in
England; this is a truly phenomenal achievement. To add to this, we had 2 students who each achieved 11 A*
passes at GCSE, one of these students gained the new grading of A* distinction in Further Maths; this pass
was only achieved by the top 1% of students in the UK!

Deservedly so, these efforts have led to the school being talked about in a variety of mediums, and as a result
we were invited to contribute to this year's Parliamentary Review, published in September. This is a very
prestigious publication and | was honoured to be invited to the launch at the Houses of Parliament along with
Chief Execufive Officer of The Sigma Trust, Jeff Brindle, and CCHS Principal, Neil Gallagher, on 23
September.

Members of our staif were recognised throughout last year with awards for the STEM Team of the Year, STEM
Educator of the Year (awarded by the Royal Institute of Engineers), Teaching Assistant of the Year, Educational
Establishment of the Year for the PE Department, runner up in Pearson National Teaching Awards, for
Outstanding New Teacher of the Year 2016, to hame just a few acknowledgements. In November 2016, as a
result of nominations from the last academic year we have been invited to an awards ceremony for 'Secondary
School of the Year’, Support Member of Staff and a Community Award for Gommitment to Youth Services for a
teacher from our Maths department. This is without mentioning any of the extra-curricular achievements of our
very talented students.

Exam results and achievements are just part of the CCHS story. On 1%t September Clacton County High
School became a founder member of The Sigma Trust, along with The Stanway Federation (wnich includes two
primary schools and the Thomas Lord Audley School) and St. Helena School. We are a group of like-minded
schools with the determination o share expertise and work coliaboratively to continue to improve the
educational outcomes and experience for all our students. Working also in conjunction with Essex University in
our VI6 partnership to broaden A level courses and opportunities, we are passionate about our continued efforts
to drive up standards and widen aspirations.

Teacher Training is something that the school actively leads in and is the host school for North East Essex
Teacher Training. Many ex-students take up teacher training through this route and once training is completed,
we are very fucky to have many of these trainees electing to work here as members of our teaching staff.

At Clacton County High School, we are a strong believer in partnerships and are always seeking new and
innovative ways to work with others, this includes our parents. We never underestimate the importance of
home and school working together and are committed to both our students and parents to ensure the success
of the home/school partnership.

Community is at the heart of the ethos of this school which extends beyond our gates. Students are actively
encouraged to think about others and the newly established Local Governing Board is extremely impressed at
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR OF THE LOCAL GOVERNING BOARD
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

the efforts made by our students; supported by their parents and teachers, and the kindness and generosity
shown to others less fortunate than themselves. The contributions towards charitable causes last year was
truly outstanding and they managed to raise an incredible £6,720, this is without all of the shoe boxes so
generously filled for the pensioners of Holly Gourt last Christmas and more recently the children of Malawi.

As Chair of the Local Governing Board | am very proud of the current success of CCHS, but this does not mean
we will be complacent, governors and staff are determined to maintain the high levels set in this record breaking
year and, as part of the new Sigma Multi Academy Trust, we will continue to drive standards up and create
opportunities for alt of the student within the MAT.

Mr Stephen McGrath

o W
Date V2 D
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CGLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

The Trustess present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016. The Annual report serves the purposes of
both a Trustees' report, and a Directors' report under company law.

The Trust operates an 11-19 academy servicing a catchment area in East Clacton. It has a net pupil capacity of
1535 and had a number on roll of 1531 in the summer 2016 census.

On the 12th August Clacton County High School changed its name to The Sigma Trust to accommodate the
formation of a Multi Academy Trust on the 1st September 2016. The Accounting Officer and Executive Principal
maoved to the role of CEO for the trust and becomes the Accounting Officer for The Sigma Trust.

Founding member institutions of The Sigma Trust are;

. Clacton County High School {Clacton on Sea)
. St Helena School (Colchester)
. The Stanway Federation (Colchester) consisting of;

The Stanway School

The Thomas Lord Audley School

The Monkwick Infant & Nursery School
The Monkwick Junior School

Structure, governance and management

a. CONSTITUTION

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's
memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing decuments of the Academy Trust.

The Trustees of Clacton County High School Academy Trust are also the Directors of the Charitable Company
for the purposes of company law. The Charitable Company is known as Clacton County High School. The
Company changed its name to The Sigma Trust on the 12th August 2016, However the school will continue to
operate under the name of Glacton County High School.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year are included in the Reference and administrative details on
page 1.

b. MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the
event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be reguired, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member.
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HiGH SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

¢. METHOD OF RECRUITMENT AND APPOINTMENT OR ELECTION OF TRUSTEES

The Academy Trust shail comprise of no less than three Trustees and not be subjected to any maximum.
As per the Articles of Association the Academy Trust will endeavour to set the following structure:

. Up to eight x Community Trustees (to be elected and confirmed by the Members).

. Two x staff Trustees to be elected by the staff body usually by secret ballot, provided that the total number
of Trustees (Including the Principal) does not exceed one third of the total number of Trustees.

. Four x Parent Trustees (Minimum of two) elected by the parents.

. The Principal will; by appointment to the Academy Trust be an elected Trustee.

. The Academy Trust may appoint up to three co-opted Trustees.

All Trustees are appointed for a four-year period and are able to be re-elected continually every four years if
approved by the Members for Community Trustees, and also for Parent Trustees, while they continue to have
children at the School or remain a member of stafi for a staff Trustee.

The Academy Trust has five members; these positions are filled by the positions established; Chair and Vice-
Chair of the Academy Trust, Chair of the Curriculum and Finance Gommittee, Chair of the Staff and Students
Commitiee and the Principal.

When the need arises to fill a vacant Community Trustee place on the Trust, the Members take this opportunity
to review the skills within the remaining body of Trustees and ook to compiement any perceived skills shortage
with new Trustees with those attributes, this may be through word of mouth, canvassing letters to relevant
industry fields or recruitment events advertised in local media. Any potential Community Trustees are then
‘interviewed' by the members to ensure the appropriate skills required are evident during this process., Parent
Trustee vacancies are advertised through recruitment letters to all students currently on roll at the school, and
staff vacancies are adveriised through internal media.

d. POLICIES AND PROCEDURES ADOPTED FOR THE INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF TRUSTEES

New Trustees' attend an induction meeting with the Principal and Chair of the Trust to understand the role and
expectations to support and challenge the school. Where appropriate after atiending the first Full Trustees
meeting of the academic year, a Trusiee may be allocated to serve on a Committee with delegated
responsibilities. All Trustees undertake training as appropriate to their work at the school and the relevant
Committee on which they serve.

The Acadermy Trust purchases the support provided by the Local Authority Governor Services team, which
provides general training in most areas of school management, as well as tailored training for the Academy
Trust. The Vice Chair of the Trust is the training fink Governor and reports on Governor/Trustee training courses
attended and supporting individual Trustee training needs. As a member of the North East Essex Education
Partnership (NEEEP) the Chair of the Trust meets bi-monthly with his feliow NEEEP Chairs to share best
practice, arrange relevant collaborative NEEEP Trustee training sessions as well as providing "Stretch and
Challenge” to each partner school.
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

e. PAY POLICY FOR KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The Trustees of the Academy have established a staffing structure for which they believe will enable the
Academy to m“eet the needs and expectations of its vision and aims. The staffing structure is reviewed and
monitored to ensure it is financially sustainable on both shart and tong term forecasts.

The Leadership Teams remuneration is based on the criteria set out in the nationally agreed Teachers Pay and
Conditions document (TPAC) and is benchmarked against the nationally agreed leadership pay ranges. The
Principals pay range is based on the established group size for a secondary academy and is determined by the
number of siudents on roll, key stage weightings and the number of special educational needs students. This is
then reviewed in light of any additional responsibilites undertaken by the Principal such as support for other
schools, or leadarship responsibilities for external organisations or related parties such as any teacher training
_provisions or alternative provision units. Other leadership salaries are determined by the Trustees in
collaboration with the Principal ensuring that responsibilities are remunerated in a fair and transparent manner
and that there are sufficient differentials between each tier of management.

All Staffing; including key personnel, are subject to robust, evidence based performance management
processes, and the Trustees, when agreeing the staffing structure, review the successes of the Academy against
value for monay expended on leadership staffing costs.

The Trustees of the Academy do not offer ‘bonus’ or ‘gratuity’ payments to any staff, including key management.

f. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

The Trustees, are responsible for the overall management and control of the school.

The Trustees have established a clear structure to delegate day to day management of the Academy via the
Principal, who is the Accounting Officer the Principal and the senior Leadership team, and then an extended
leadership Team. The Senior Leadership team consists of the Executive Principal, Principal and two Vice
Principals, these senior staff have responsibility for ensuring the School Development Plan is delivered as
expected by the Academy Trust Board;

The School Improvement Plan is split into five defined areas,

. Leadership & Management
. Behaviour & Safety

. Teaching & Learning

. Curriculum & Achievement
. Sixth Form Provision

Each of the above areas also has at least one Link Trustee who monitors closely the outcomes and then reports
back to the Academy Trust.

To complete the Senior Leadership Team there are two Senior Assistant Principals, responsible for Staff
Development and Sixth Form, four Assistant Principals with responsibility for K83, Primary Liaison, Quality of
Teaching and Data Analysis and the Schaols Business Manager with oversight of Finance & Support Operations.
The day to day practices are managed in line with the relevant policies approved by the Academy Trust or
associated committees; the spending of the Academy is managed in line with the Finance Regulations and the
approved budget.
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

g. CONNECTED ORGANISATIONS, INCLUDING RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS

To support the.Academy with achieving its objectives the Academy liaises with organisations such as the Local
Authority, Primary Care Trust, Tendring Education Trust, Social Services, National College of School Leadership,
as well as many other local educational providers, local schools and higher educational providers.

Clacton County High School is also the recognised lead entity by the NCTL for the North Essex Teacher Training
SCITT scheme, the Academy Trust has delegated a committee of Trustees to have oversight of the scheme.
The Principal and School Business Manager work with the schemes leadership team to operate the scheme in
line with the guidance and expectations set out by the NCTL. The financial and governance policies for the NETT
scheme are established within the Academy’s policies and procedures.

The Academy also works in partnership with four other local 11-18 Secondary schools in the local area and
Essex University to form the VIS initiative. This collaboration enables the sharing of best teaching and the
generation of the broadest curriculum offer of minority subjects such as Further Maths and MFL post-16 which
could not be offered viably in a single institution. Another key aim of this project is to raise the aspirations of the
young people in the area to help make access to Higher Education a reality. This partnership has been selected
as a finalist in the TES national education awards 2016. The Headteachers/Principals and lead staff from these
institutions meet as an executive team to operate the programme.

The Academy also has operational connections with. the local Teaching School Alliance (TSA) Coast2Coast, The
Executive Principal sits on the Management Board of the TSA, as NETT procures its trainee allocation through
the TSA. CoastZCoast also supports partner schools with CPD programmes.

Clacton County High School is an original member of the North East Essex Educational Partnership (NEEEP)
Umbreila Trust which consists of six other local secondary Academies, which are working together to share best
practice and support to provide the best possible education possible. NEEEP operates as a Limited Gompany
with the lead Principal/Headteacher and Chair of Governors from each partnership Academy o run and operate
the Company.

h. TRUSTEES' INDEMMNITIES

In accordance with commercial practice the Acadermy has purchased Trustees' Liability Insurance to protect the
Trustees and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions whilst on School business.
The cover under the policy is £5 million; this is held with Catlin Insurance Company (UK) Ltd. Inthe pericd under
review there have been no claims made against this palicy.
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
’ {A company limiied by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Strategic repoﬁ
Objectives and Activities
a. OBJECTS AND AIMS

Clacton County High School's main objectives are encompassed in our migsion siatement and School vision;

Qur vision at Clacton County High School is o create opportunities within and beyond the curriculum to enable
each student to develop his or her potential to the full in order that he or she may be a confident, independent
and successful adult.

. We seek to widen the aspirations of all students, to help them to create a goal they can then strive to
achieve.
. We have high expectations of academic success and personal behaviour and believe these are best

achieved in a caring enviranment.

Both these aims are encompassed in our mission statement: Wider Aspirations, Higher Expectations.

. We recognise the imporiance of each individua! within the School community and the place of the School
in the local community.

. We seek 1o create a working environment in which learning is at the heatt, students come fo school to
learn and it is our job to help them.

. We aim to promote lifelong learning by developing creative, independent and reflective thinkers.

. We encourage students to enjoy their time at school by providing a range of enrichment activities to
help enable this.

. We value responsibility, initiative and enterprise and build these into our curriculum.

. We promote respect and good manners; these are fundamental to our community.

. We believe in the equality of opportunity and in celebrating success of all kinds.

b. OBJECTIVES, STRATEGIES AND ACTIVITIES

Our main objectives for this period, were established in our 2014/15 School Development Pian and were as
follows: !
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Leadership & Management

Key Priorities

Purpose/Reason

To enrich the curriculum
through a series of REAL
(Religious, Ethical and Lifelong
l.earning) days aimed at
delivering aspects of FSHE,
SMSC and Careers education
to enabile our siudents to
develop a greater
understanding and
appreciation of our diverse
society.

+ Ensure PSHE and British
values are fully delivered

+ Ensuring outstanding delivery
of PSHE (good in iast subject
inspection)

» Ensuring that our students
widen their horizons to fully
understand life in a diverse
Britain

» Ensure that studenis all have
access to cutstanding CIAG

» Gridmaker shows that all
elements are fully covered

+ SIR drop ins show sessions
are at least good, many are
outstanding.

» High profile displays indicate
that students are considering
their role in society

- Progression post-16 high;
NEET <2%

To further develop leadership
capagity within the school by
supporting middle leaders
through ctearly identified GPD
and targeted intervention.

« Provide support far newly
appointed and inexperienced
colleagues.

« improve outcomes in English
and humanities.

» Middle leaders programme
leads to significant
improvement in cutcomes
within subject; Middle Leader
achieves PM targets.

To further develop the
monitoring and evaluation of
the quality of teaching and
learning through traditional
lesson observations, shorter
visits to a series of lessons and
regular boak reviews. The
focus will be on the guality of
experience acrass the school
as well as the individual
teacher performance
management reviews. The
focus of each visit will be
predetermined linked to key
aspects of school policy.

» Move teachers from Rl to
good and from good o
outstanding.

» Familiarise staff with Ofsted
format of observations.

» Evaluate climate of school
through SIRs.

= Monitor consistent
implementation of policies:
presentation and marking

- Lesson observations to
increase 1o 30% outstanding
and number of teachers
regularly delivering
outstanding iessons to rise to
12

« 100% of teaching staff to
have been ohserved during at
least 1 SIR

+» Grades of SIR elements
recorded with improvement
from tast areas for
development recorded.

« 100% of subject areas to be
in line with school! policy for
marking and presentation.

To develop effective
collaboration with other Post
16 providers t¢ enrich and
enhance the curriculum offer
by becoming a lead school in
Vi6 partnership with Essex
University.

= Widen the choice of subjects
available

» More cost effective delivery of
minority subjects

+ Improved quality of teaching

» Raise aspiration for Higher
Education

=7 Year 12 A Level courses
created and running at Essex
Uni

» 10+ studenis in each class
- Joint observations carried
out and all lessons at least
Good

» Increase in HE progression
in 2017 from 53% in 2015
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

» MAT established with allor a
majority of NEEEP schools
leading to improved
accountability and governance
and faster school improvement

To use our approved
sponsorship to create a Mulii
Academy Trust linked to a
number of the NEEEP
academies and identified
primary schools and to create a
model of governance aimed at
creating additional capacity
and accountability.

To continue to expand and
improve the learning
environment to cope with
predicted rise in pupil numbers
by ensuring the successful

» A larger MAT will provide
enhanced challenge,
accountability and support

+ Support deeper collaboration
with partner schools

« Increase the capacity to
accommodate growing roll.

« Enhance the circulation
around the school and access
to the Sixth Form common

+ Building work does not
impact on smooth running of
the school.

» Increase capacity by 75
places from September 2016.

completion of the additional room. - Build comes in on budget
classrooms between A and B and on time.
Blocks.
Teaching & Learning
" Key Priorities Purpose/Reason . Success Criterla

To ensure teachers
assessments are based on
robust and objective

* Response to need to
ensure improved accuracy in
assessments, particularly in

+ 90% accuracy to within one
grade for Year 11 classes.
» New assessment maodel

models that identify what
students have achieved
and what they need io do
to improve. Assessment at
Key Stage 3 will refiect "life
without levels” by
introducing a 5 scale
progress measure for each
student. '

non-core subjects

=« Response to removal of
levels in new National
Curriculum

« Ensure appropriate and
timely interventions are in
place for key students.

« Certainty that all groups
of students are making at
least good progress.

introduced and parents informed
of changes

» Quicomes from assessments
linked to LABS and interventions
in place.

» Lesson

observations demonstirate
accuracy of assessments

To maintain a cancerted
focus on improving the
quality of marking and
feedback to students to
ensure fhatithas a
significant impact on
learning. To ensure the
school's marking policy is
implemented consistently
across the school and is
fully understood by all
stakeholders.

» Students make good
progress as a direct result of
teacher feedback.

+ Progress over time is good
or better.

» Lesson observations in
2014/15 identified some
inconsistency in
implementation of school
policy

» 100% SIRs evidence grade 2 or
better for marking and student
response.

+ 100% SIRs evidence grade 2 or
better for progress over time.

Page 12



THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL

(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Behaviour & S:afetv

B

I 'Key Priorities

i

Purpose/Reason

To continue to improve the
level of attendance, and
maintain Persistent Absence
below national average
{against the new 10%
threshold), amongst all groups
of students.

+ Response to dip in attend.ari.c':e; .

in2014/15

+ Improved attendance is clearly
linked to improved achievement
and attainment.

+ Absence can be an early
indicator for Child Protection
issues.

“No group to have.

attendance data below
national average.
« Less than 10% of our
students are PA.

To maintain high levels of
safeguarding with all students,
to ensure that this is not a
"barrier to any student
achieving their potential,
through all staff being regularly
updated with training (e.g.
tacKkling radicalisation and
identifying students at risk)
and maintaining accurate
records.

To ensure governors are fully
informed of all safeguarding
matters, involved in
completing the Gounty
safeguarding audit and are
refreshed on GP &
Safeguarding training at

- Safeguarding every child is the
highest priority for the schoal.

« New training is available at
regular intervals throughout the
year from ECSB and this needs
to be disseminated to all staff to
ensure they are up to date with
current topicsfissues and feel
confident to address these
issues should they arise.

- With staff changing throughout
the year it is essential to Keep a
central safeguarding training
record.

« Safeguarding training
delivered to 100% of staff
at key points throughout
the year (evidenced in
training log)

» County Safeguarding
audit complete with a
score of 100% (2014-15
this was 95%)

« Governor minutes show
CP & safeguarding
addressed as a standing
agenda item and
Governor visits shows a
termly visit from link
Safeguarding governor to
the school.

regular intervals.
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
: FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Curriculum & Achievement

i Key Priorities

Purpose/Reason

To raise standards across KS4
with a clear focus on English and
the baccalaureate areas,

humanities in particular, to ensure

that all students have access to a
high quality academic
curriculum. Objective mock
exams to be used regularly
providing detailed feedback
leading to sharp intervention and
higher standards.

- in 2015 "Bucket 2" was our
lowest performing element of
progress 8

» English Language was a
signi

ficant issue in 2015.

- "Bucket 2" to achieve a
minimum progress score of
+3.15

» English Language progress
score to be similar to
mathematics +0.40

To deliver a broad balanced
curriculum that enables ALL
learners to achieve highly within
the Progress 8 framework
including our foundation learners
and gifted and talented learners.

+ Need to respond to changing
headiine measures whilst
maintaining a broad offer for
students

» The proportion of A/A*
grades is not high enough

= Ensure that the progress 8
curriculum and FL curriculum
match the needs of our
leamers leading above
average Progress 8
outcomes; target of +0.50

» Exceed the National
average A/A* cohort target
from relevant KS2-4
transition matrix

Sixth:Form Provision

Key Briorities
=Y s

Purpose/Reason

To raise standards across AS
& A levels in the Sixth Form to
enable our students to make
progression onto university
courses or into gainful
smployment.

« Post-18 NEET figures low
« Improve progress within
academic subjects

« NEET <2%
» Ensure AS and A level point
scores improve leading to

Al Ps grade 4.

To improve the accuracy of
assessment at AS level so that
interventions can be more
timely and focussed and raise
attainment.

« Predicted grades are too
generous and interventions are
consequently misplaced,
without AS modules A level
predictions may well suffer with
terminal assessment

= Assessment accuracy {o
show significant improvement.
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOCL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

c. PUBLIC BENEFIT

Clacten Countj High School Academy Trust is a Charitable Trust which seeks to benefit the public through the
pursuit of its stated aims.

The Trustees have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit published by the
Charity Commission.

d. MAIN ACTI\):'ITIES UNDERTAKEN TO FURTHER THE CHARITY'S PURPOSES FOR PUBLIC BENEFIT

The Academy is a strong and continuously improving institution serving a community with significant levels of
deprivation, under-employment and low aspiration.

The Department for Education (DIE) recently released national comparative data based on school performance
in 2016. The new DIE headiine benchmark is 'Progress 8' based on the progress pupils make from the end of
primary school until the end of secondary school across a curriculum of 8 subjects. Under the previous system,
schools were judged on the proportion of students who gained at least five A*-C grades at GCSE, including
English and maths which was criticised for encouraging schools fo focus disproportionately on the C/D borderline
students.

Clacton County High School is celebrating being recognised as one of the highest performing schools in the
country in 2016, Using the new DfE 'Progress 8' measure Clacton County High Scheo! ranked 35th out of 6382
schdols, in the top 0.5% in England!

What does this new Progress 8 measure mean?

if the Progress 8 score was 0 then students would have achieved in line with other students nationally with the
same starting points in each of the & subjects they studied, if the Progress 8 score was +1 then students would
have achieved 1 grade higher in every subject they studied compared with other students with the same Key
Stage 2 prior attainment from primary schoel (only 7 schools in England achieved a Progress 8 score of +1 or
higher)

At Clacton County High School, the Progress 8 score was +0.71 and which was not only the highest in Essex but
also the Eastern region including Suffolk, Norfolk, Lincolnshire, Cambridgeshire and Hertfordshire.

In 2015/16 colléagues were recognised far their impact on the education of our siudents both locally and
nationally including Essex teaching award winners in the categories of; “outstanding new teacher of the year”,
"teaching assistant of the year”, “team of the year* won by our STEM team (Science, Technology, Engineering
and Mathematics). This led 1o a colleague winning a national award for “STEM educator of the year" and another
colleague a national finalist in the category of “outstanding new teacher of the year”.

The school was also one of only a handful of schools to feature as a case study school in the “Parfiamentary
Review of the Year" which is a highly prestigious publication that is circulated nationally to all educational
establishments, raising the profile of CCHS to a broad audience.
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

a. KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

C]acton ‘County High School - Academy Trust is committed to observing the importance of performance
indicators, to ensure that it continues to strive for both educational and financial excellence, as shown above the
school continues to improve year on year with its own achievements.
Educational Ouicomes
Year 11

. Progress 8 +0.71 (top 0.5% nationally); Progress 8 for disadvantaged pupils +0.44

. Attainment 8 52.54; Attainment 8 for disadvantaged 48.61

. 61% Achieving a good pass in English and maths; 47% of disadvantaged students achieved a

: good pass in English and maths.

. 14% Achieving the English Baccalaureate; 10% of disadvantaged students achieved the English
Baccalaureate.

Year 13

48% achieved A* - B in A level subjects

76% A* - C.

The average A Level grade was a C

92% Dist*-Dist in Level 3 BTEC programmes
The average BTEC grade awarded was a Dist*-
99.4% pass rate overall.

117 Students completed Year 13.

* & & » =®' "
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

. Attendance
Attendance -
12/13 114

All 94.6 94.9 94.6
Year 7 95.1 95,2 95.7
Year 8 94.3 951 98.2
Year 9 93.9 94.7 94.3
Year 10 94.5 94.9 93.3
Year 11 94.7 95 94
Male 94.7 95.1 94.7
Female 94.4 94.7 94.4
FSM 93.5 93.7 92.9
Non FSM 852 95.8 94.9
E 94.4 94 93.9
K 93.8 91.2 g2
Non - SEN 94.6 95.1 94.8
CiC 96.7 97.3 96.6
Non-CiC 94.6 94,9 94.5
PPG 93.9 93.4
Non-PPG 95.7 95.5

After a Hip in 2014/15 our attendance improved in 2015-16, however, this remains one of the Academy’s
key areas for improvement 2016-17, as despite our nationally recognised student progress outcomes

being so high, our student attendance is average when compared to national comparators.
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
B (A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

i
l
i
i

Fmance

% of Income /Expenditure 2013 2014 2015
:‘ Educational Supplies 2.9% 3.3% 2.8%
Exam Fees 1.6% 1.8% 1.5%
Staff Development 0.3% 0.2% 0.2%
Educational Consultancy 2.8% 1.4% 0.8%
: Utilities 2.0% 2.2% 2.2%
? Total Teaching Costs 60.9% 615% | 61.8%
l Total Support Staff Costs 10.8% 11.5% 11.7%
Total Staffing Costs 7% | 73.0% | 73.5%

In Jaruary 2016 Clacton County High Scheol and four other like-minded academies in our local area
submltted a joint bid to the Department of Education to form a Multi Academy Trust to be known as The
Sigma Trust. This bid was approved with some amendments in April 2016. On the 1%! September 2016
The Slgma Trust was formed.

1

|

b. INVE_STMENT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Truétees acknowledge the need to consider maximising any potential for income from reserves held by the
Academy, however it also acknowledges the requirement to ensure these funds are invested in any no risk
opportumnes

The Academy uses a current account with a bank approved by the Academy Trust and maintains a balance in
that account that is sufficient to cover immediate and forthcoming financial commitments

Monles surplus to these requirements can be invested in an account in the name of the Academy and a savings
acccunt is operated by the Trust to maximise the reserves, however this savings account is a low risk option.

3
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. THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNCWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
‘ {A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

a. GOING CONCERN

After makmg appropriate enqumes the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy has
adeqdate resources to continue in operational existence for ihe foreseeable future, For this reason it continues
to adopt the 'going concern’ basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of
the gaing concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies.

b. PR]NCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Academy Trust's risk management processes aim to minimise the perceived risk to the academy trust. The
main current risk of any materiality relates to the deficit the academy trust holds in the Local Government
Pensibn’ Scheme. Monthly payments to reduce this deficit have been paid throughout the period. Due to the
current volatility of the Bonds Market, it is likely that this deficit will increase despite the payments having been
made.

The "ﬁruétees consider that in addition to the LGPS Pension Scheme, the principle risks and uncertainties facing
the Academy Trust are:

. Lower student transition in the school from 16 to 13 provision.

. Planning for substantial increase in school roll.

. Meeting requisite standards of education for students in core subjects.
. Complying with legislative requirements regarding employment, law, data protection,
. ‘ discrimination, Companies House and HRMC, child protection, the Charity Commission and the
L National Curriculum.

] Future changes to unitary payment for the Academy's PFi project.

. Significant changes to the school’s annual funding budget due to the move to a national funding

formula.

] Operational risks resulting from inexperienced or inappropriate staff being employed and
L inaccurate, out of date or inappropriaie information.
o Changes to the curriculum, which supress student choice for subject options.

] Continued increase in the Local Government Pension Scheme Liability.

1

The key controls used by the Academy include:

° Detailed terms of reference for all commitiees.
. Formal agendas for the academy board and committees.
. Schemes of Delegation and formal financial regulations.
Lo Formal written policies.
Lo Clear authorisation and approval levels.
. Policies and procedures required by law to protect the vulnerable.

High quality appointiments to all school posts,

The Trustees and Senior Leadership Team continue to monitor the risks that the academy faces, and
. addresses these risks through the continued monitering of the schools Risk Management Policy.
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL.
{A company limited by guarantee)

o TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
. FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

e REsERVEs POLICY

The Trustees consider it essential to maintain a level of useable reserves which is sufficient to meet the
requirements of any unexpecied and unplanned financial expenditure so that the Academy's primary objective is
mamtalned while at the same time ensuring that it uses its funding to the benefit of students on raoll at the time
funding is issued.

In degiding the level of reserves in any financial year Trustees will take into account the following:

. : Potential reduction in income due to fluctuation and variance in student numbers in the locality.

. 'Lower student transition in the school from 11-18 to 16-19 provision.

. . Uncertainty, turbulence or expected reduction in funding from the EFA.

. _uncertainty and concern over the affordability of the PFI contract over the long term of the contract.

. »Gurriculum changes requiring the need for large investment in facilities development or ICT invesiment
o ;Cash flow fiming issues.

- 'Slgmfscant changes lo the scheol's annual funding budget due to the move to a national funding formula
. One month's salary bill - currently around £570,000.

The Trust is holdlng reserves (excluding the fixed asset funds) of £1,545,573 of which £800,749 is an
unrestricted general reserve fund of which an amount remains which was inherited on conversion. The
remainder of this holding reserves figure is £644,824 which has been accrued since conversion to academy
status. Of the £644,824 restricted reserves, the Academy had been working on plans with the local authority and
PFI partles in respect of the potential expansion of the school premises, with an anticipated cost 1o the schoal of
£585,000. Since the year end, progress with this project has halted and other projects fo develop the school will
nowcb_fe pursued to utilise the accumulated reserves.

The balance sheet includes a liability of £4,547,000 in relation to the Academy's FRS 102 disclosure of the Local
Govetnment Pension Scheme (see pensions note for further details).

[

d. DEFICIT

The, Iealence sheet includes a liabilily of £4,547,000 in relation to the Academy's valuation of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (see pensions note for further details).

e. PRINCIPAL FUNDING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The magoniy of the Academy's income is obtained from the Education Funding Agency {EFA} in the form of
recyrrent grants, the use of which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the EFA during
the penoc{ ended 31 August 2016 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement
of financial activities. :

Duriné the period ended 31 August 20186, recurrent expenditure exceeded income from the General Annual
Grant.by £43,083.

The belence sheet includes a liability of £4,547,000 in relation to the Academy's FRS 102 disclosure of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (see note for further details).

The Academy has built up a sum of £1,545,573 in its reserves of which £880,000 was inherited on conversion
and a further £20,749 since conversion and is therefore deemed as unrestricted. The Acadery Trust has been
concerned over funding in the last few years due to the continued projection of a reduction in primary to
secondary transition numbers and the uncertainty of the costs associated with the Academies Private Finance
Initiative, Scheme, and, as such has previously deemed it appropriate that financial prudence is practiced and a
reserves amouht £750,000 has been earmarked to deal with these uncertainties. In addition to these localised
issues, the Academy's Trustees have also been considering the potential negative implications of a National
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(A company limited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

—
; t !
Funding: Formula, rise in employer's pensions contributions and inflationary increases in costs and services as
well. as staff pay increments, whilst balancing a budget with stagnant or in Essex Gounty Council's terms,
reductions in AWPU rates.

However, the Trustees are now in a slightly more confident position regarding the Academy’s finances due fo the
Academy's PFI contributions being resolved in a positive manner, an allocation of Minimum Funding Guarantee,
and the primary transition numbers now starting to arrive into Year 7.
These positive actions leave the Academy in a slightly more stable position to move forward to consider investing
in further modifications to the school estate to make other learning environments more conducive to the rising
student numbers.
With the above statements made, the Academy Trust still believes that a reserves amount of £750,000 is
providing the financial security required for an Academy of our size.

|
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(A company [imited by guarantee)

TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

a FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Due 1o ﬂ:'le change to a multi academy trust, and a change to the Trustees and overarching vision of the trust, the
below, future plans identified are that of The Sigma Trust, and are for implementation across all academies and

are as follows;

Wanagement 12

P
I

To ensure that the mission, vision
and Values of The Sigma Trust are
shared;and embedded within each
academy

communicated, shared and implemnented across all
academies.

« Ensure the mission, vision and values of Sigmais fully

« Develop effective communication strategy that
presents a positive outward face to the world.

To enhsure that governance in The
Sigma Trust is effective at all levels
and lines of accountability are fully
understood.

i P

1

- Ensure the Board of Trustees, Sub-Commitiees and
Local Governing Bodies are established with clear terms
of reference and levels of commitment fully understood
and demanstrated.

+ Develop role of independent consultant supporting
identified LGBs

» Ensure that self evaluation is embedded into each
group to enable them to measure their effectiveness.

To develop leadership capacity
across:The Sigma Trust to enable
students to make the best progress
possible.

H '

!

> Review leadership capacity across Sigma academies
and identify strengths and areas for development

« Work with TSA to create targeted programme of CPD
for Senior and Middle eaders

= Create roles of Subject Leads in English, Maths and
Science to support the development of these key areas
of the curriculum.

- Release staif with SLE or Lead Practioner roles to
provide support in identified areas.

+ Commission support from identified outstanding
Primary provision o create leadership capacity in
primary schoaols.

To ensure that The Sigma Trust
becomes the employer of choice in
the area leading to enhanced
recriitment, retention and greater
catepr progression of staff through
close partnership with local ITT
providers

« Ensure all schools have access to at least 1 trainee in
2017/18 and a minimum of 5 in secondary schools

» Provide support for schools with limited capacity to
menior trainees

» Develop links with Teach First and work collaboratively
with existing providers.

« Develop a structured approach to overstaffing to
provide capacity to second staff to suppert other
schools.

» Develop a career progression profile for staff linked to
performance management and CPD.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT {continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

To ensure effective quality
assurance, monitoting and
evaluation systems are in place
across The Sigma Trust
academies.

- Agree systems of data collection and quality assurance
linked to effective intervention processes building on
knowledge and expetience already in place.

- Agree lesson observation policy to ensure all staff are
subject to equivalent levels of accountability.

» Implement arrangements for CEO and Headteachet's
PM

» Create Triad programme based initially on two Sigma
academies and one external school model on an agreed
focus to provide mutual support and challenge.

» Develop Primary Triad model building on existing
partnerships.

To implement expansion plans for
the Multi Academy Trust.
i

= Seek to expand by a minimum of two academies in first
year.

» Work with other MATs and local groups to provide
additional capacity.-

« Implement effective succession planning to ensure
Sigma has the capacity to support additional schools
and continue to thrive.

To develop an evolutionary
approach to providing wider central
services as the Sigma Trust
expands.

i

» Set up initial core team consisting of CEO,
Improvement Lead and seconded Directors of Finance,
Operations and HR. Company Secretary.

» Review all services to identify those that would be
more effectively and efficiently delivered from the centre.

» Review cover and careers arrangements to explore the
central administration and deployment.

- Explore alternatives to Essex for the delivery of more
effective occupational health support.

To ensure all Sigma academies are
finarcially secure.

« Review income, expenditure and reserves for all Sigma
schools and create a three year plan to ensure al}
schools are able to achieve an in-year balance.

» Analyse staffing and other costs, using effective
benchmarking, in each academy and identify efficiency
savings.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Toimprove levels of atiendance
across all groups of students so
that students make the most of the
opportumt[es available at school
(academnc social, extra-curricular)

. Ensure monthly'attendance data acmssSlgma schools
is presented in a consistent manner and clearly identifies
the altendance of different groups.

« Review the strengths of each academy in monitoring
and responding to attendance

To: seclre effective social,
emotional & mental health support
for:children of all ages so that an
appropriate nurture model Is
deve[oped at each Sigma academy

« Work in collaboration with TSAs (C2C andfor Learning
Pathways) 1o develop a programme for students of all
ages 1o support staff to understand and respond
effectively to the social and emetional needs of children
who show challenging behaviour.

« Work with Steve Whitfield (Ed. Psych.) to identify
additional support required to meet the needs of young
pupils with significant social and emctional issues

« Work with local special scheols to identify additional
ouf reach support.

To work with-NEEAPS and others
to ensure that increased support is
provided for vulnerable students.

= Role out "Grow" and "STOP" provision across all
academies to minimise fixed term exclusions.

« Work with NEEAPS to ensure Positive Referrals and
Managed Moves can work effectively at all key stages fo
avoid permanent exclusions and reduce in year
turbulence.

« Ensure that the learning centre at the Alderman Blaxill
site provides effective support.

To: estabhsh & cross Trust
programme for moving the quality
of teaching forward for all staff.

tdentn‘y the proportlon of staff deemed to beA
Qutstanding, Good ete.

» Use joint cross academy observations to ensure
greater consistency supported by external advisors.

« Work with TSAs tc develop a programme of CPD to
promoie higher proportion of outstanding teaching

+ ldentify cross academy mentors with Lead Practioner
roles to develop outstanding teaching.

« Ensure commen framework exist in all academies for
addressing underperformance.

To.ehsure teachers' assessments
are based on robust and cbjective

» Review existing structures of assessment, moderation,
monitoring and intervention to ensure any
underachievement is identified and reduced.

modeis
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

To raise standards across K54 to
achieve positive Progress 8 scores
in ea{chf “bucket” or group of
students.

.
« Review outcomes from 2016 exams across all
academies and identify areas for improvement.

+ Create improvement plan for each group of
subjects/students that have a negative Progress 8 score.

To.ensure all Primary schools are
above the definition for coasting
schools in terms of pupil progress
gach aé:ademic year.

P

+ Review outcomes from 2016 K82 SATS and identify
areas for improvement.

« Create improvement plan for any area, reading, writing
or Maths, that is below floor target/coasting thresheld for
progress.

To agrée across Sigma academies
the adaption of exam specifications
for different groups of students at
KS4,

« Use clear internal or external evidence based research
to identify the appropriate exam specifications and
structures for Maths and English for first exam in 2017.

» Students, in identified ability groups, to sit same
specification across Sigma schaols to allow effective
support, moderation and joint mock exams.

To ensire that transition
arrangements from KS2 to KS3
enai:?le;studen_ts to build on prior
achievemenis.

« Develap a consistent approach to assessing students'
priar achievement across the curriculum.

To review curriculum models for
Foundation Learners and seek
ways of increasing 14-16

+ Review current provision including Alderman Blaxill
site, NEEAPS and possible Free School bids

Alternative Provision.

FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN

The A’ca‘demy Trust acts as a custodian to funds held on behalf of the Tendring Primary Partnership, these funds
have been given to Clacton County High School for the Tendring Primary Partnership by Essex County Gouncil.
The Executive Principal has been nominated as Chair for this Partnership by Essex County Council and as such
facilitates the creation of the action plan and ensures the funds are spent in an appropriate manner to meet the
outcomes of the partnership. In this financial year the Partnership was allocated a grant £20,000, as of the 31st
August 2016 the Partnership had a surplus taken info the following financial year of £14,022.50. With the
creation, on the 1st September of The Sigma Trust, the Chair of the Partnership and management of the
remainirig funds has been passed to one of the partner primary schools. At the earliest available opportunity,
theseifunds will be passed over to the new host school to continue with meeting the requirements as identified in
the Partnerships action plan. Through the Financial Management System these funds are allocated their own
Cost Centre to ensure segregation and identification of spent and unspent funds.

1
1
H
i
H
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o TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
C FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

Each :of the persons who are Trustees at the time when this Trustees' Report is approved has confirmed that:
L Esd far as that Trustee is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Charitable Company's
_auditors are unaware, and
«  ithat Trustee has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Trustee in order to be aware of
" jany information needed by the Charitable Company's auditors in connection with preparing their report
tand to establish that the Charitable Company's auditors are aware of that information.

This r{epor’t, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees as the company
directors, on 12412 1€ and signed on its behalf by:

................................................
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

K
SCGPE:OF RESPONSIBILITY
As trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Sigma Trust previously known
as Clacton County High School has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise.
However such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectwes and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The, Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive Principal; Mr Jeff Brindle,, as
Accountmg Officer, for ensurmg financial contrals conform with the requirements of both propnety and good
finanolal management and in accordance with the requiremenis and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding
agreement between The Sigma Trust previously known as Clacton County High School and the Secretary of
State for Education. They are also respensible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or
breakdowns in internal control.

GOVERNANCE

The, lnformation on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’' Report and in the
Statement of Trustees' responsibilities. The Board of Trusiees has formally met 4 times during the year.
Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

P

Trasﬁee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mr Hérbert Foster

Mr Stephen McGrath
Mr: Ftichard Moodey
Mrs Elizabeth Croxon
Mrs Lorralne Smith
Mrs Mel Willsmore
Ms Justine Holmes
Mrs Julie Aldis

Mr Jeff Brindle

Ms Caroline Barrait
Mrs Carale Carlsson Browne
Mrs Elizabeth Ridout

Mr Gary Winterford
Mr Nick Pavitt

NIr Andrew Davenall
Mr Bradley Powell
Ms I'_orraine-Laudrum

1

OO OoOUMARWWEAE 2N EWEHO
COQOM PN MM-~HOTG0NT--

“This year has seen the trustees contemplating some major decisions over the future of the trust and other

academiles in our locality. The trustees believe that the strengths and skills within our members has made these
demsrons in a transparent and prufessronal manaor, and believes that this change to a multi academy trust will

. enable the academy to continue to raise the outcomes of our students in our locality and share best practice and

strong governance with other like-minded academies.

_The. academy has over the year seen the resignation of our long term Chair of Governors Mr Bert Foster, with

this resignation we have lost a wealth of historic knowledge after many years of Ieaderstup within the
Governance of Clacton County High School, However, it is recognised that the trustees left in place under the
néw leadership of Mr Steve McGrath have the correct balance of skills and experience to led Clacton County

High School in to its next phase as a multi academy trust under the direction of the trustees of The Sigma Trust.

On the 14th September 20186, many of the Clacton County High Schaool trustees resrgned as part of the transfer
to a multi academy trust, to enable a new board of trustees to lead the six academies in the new trust and take
over the:governance. Three of the Clacton County High School trustees have transitioned over to the new board
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T 3
l

and have been joined by 6 other external trustees to develop The Sigma Trust. CCHS will continue to have the
ongmal frustees in place however they will operate as a Local Governing Board from this point.

Clacton County High Schools last Ofsted inspection carried out in July 2014, confirmed the findings of the
prevrous full section 5 inspection which graded Leadership and Management as '‘GOOD', the trustees are
expeotmg a section 8 inspection in the very near future, and believes through its self-evaluation with the
leadership team that the academy should be graded by Ofsted as 'outstanding’.

The trustees continue to play an active part in school monitoring by attending ‘review meetings’. Our ‘link’
Governors continue to meet with the appropriate Senior Leadership Team member to challenge outcomes and
areas of responsibility. The trustees have undertaken safeguarding and Financial monitoring training, and has
oontlnued to investigate and understand the siructures and purpose of gaining MAT status throughout the
Journey to the established MAT on the 1st September.

The Cumcuium and Finance Committee is a sub-committee of the main board of trustees. {s purpose is to
review and monitor the educational provision and outcomes of the studenis who attend the academy and also to
review #@nd monitor the academy's financial systems, practices and operating funds. The committee has both
enjoyed; ithe successiul outcomes achieved by the staff and studenis across the school and was overwhelmed by

achievmg the progress 8 scote placing us in the top 0.5% of all schools nationally, but also the awards and
' recognrtton received by staff form external bodies, for national new teacher of the year, STEM team of the year
and: T‘A of the year. The C&F Committee also feels that the long term financial viability of the academy is secure

due to the increases in student numbers at year 7 and is pleased with the outcomes of the external responsible
officer reviews completed at the academy.

At,tendance at meetings in the year was as follows:

Trust:eé Meetings attended Out of a possible
Mr Richiard Moodey 3 3
Mr Herbert Foster 2 2
Nr Stephen McGrath 3 3
Mrs Elizabeth Croxon 1 3
Ms .Justrne Holmes - 2 3
Mr Neti Gal!agher 3 3
Mr Jeff Brindle 3 3
Mrs Carole Carlsson Browne 2 3
3 3

Mrs Elizabeth Ridout
REVIEW OF VALUE FOR MONEY
L
As Ao‘coﬁunting Officer, the Executive Principal; Mr Jeff Brindle, has responsibility for ensuring that the Academy
Trust ‘délivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for

money refers to the educational and wider sccietal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources
recerved

The Acoountmg Officer cansiders how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be
rmproved including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Academy
Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

. Leadmg the academy to a Progress 8§ score of +0.71 (top 0.5% nationally);
+ . Leading the academy to a Progress 8 score for disadvantaged pupils +0.44;
. Workrng with other NEEEP headieachers and Trustees to successfully converting the academy to
. achieving multi academy trust status and opening a new MAT called The Sigma Trust;
< Managmg the SCITT scheme to its highest number of recruited trainees to address the staffing shortages

.inthe local area;
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o GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

* . Leading on the V18 project to enable minority post 16 subjects to continue which otherwise would not be

-financially viable, by collaborating with other local academies and Essex University;
. ; Entering in to an additional improved Gas supply contract reducing costs by circa £15,000 per year
+ ., Working with NEEAPs to reduce alternative provision costs and remodelling the academy operating

. structure to enable the closure of the Applied Learning Centre reducing costs for alternative provision by
' circa £100,000 in the following financial year.

THE E‘UBPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The s&siem of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonabile level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure 0 achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Sigma Trust previously
known as Clacton County High School for the year 1st September 2015 to 31st August 2016 and up to the date
of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Due to the trusts change in status to The Sigma Trust, Internal controls will be reviewed further in light of this
change and appropriate systems have been introduced to allow for trust wide consistency.

CAPACITY TO HANDLE RISK

The éoér’d of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Board of
Ttustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
Academy Trust's significant risks, that has been in place for the year 1st September 2015 to 31st August 2016
and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed
by the Board of Trustees

Dle to the trusts change in status to The Sigma Trust, a revised risk management processes is underway by the
new QEO on behalf of the new Board.

T

THE'BISK AND CONTROL FRAMEWORK

The. Acé.demy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
informatjon and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

. ' comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports

' “which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees:

LI -reﬁgular reviews by the of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of majar
o ‘plrchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;

o. ' .sefting targets to measure financial and other performance;

‘ ;clieagly defined purchasing {asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines.
delegation of autherity and segregation of duties;
" identification and management of risks.

Tbe[E{oafrd of Trustees has considered the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided to appoint
Mrs, Mel Willsmore as responsible officer but cutsource the completion of these additional checks to Griffin
Chapman chartered accountants who will liaise with the academy's responsible officer.

The ﬁesponsible Officer; with support and guidance from the external accountants’, role includes giving advice
on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the academy trust's financial systems. Twice a year

3

.l
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:

1

thé _Rb -Feports to the board of trustees, through the Curriculum and Finance committee on the operation of the
systems. of control and on the discharge of the board of trustees' financial responsibiiities.

All iséues raised in the financial year 15-16 were deemed to be low level as assessed by the external
accountants, all improvements as suggested by the accountants have now been addressed by the academy's
fmance staff and changes to operating systerns / operating practices have been implemented.

ﬂiswizw OF EFFECTIVENESS

As Accounteng Oﬁlcer the Executive Principal; Mr Jeff Bnndle has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness
of the! system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

The Board of Trustees;

Reviews by the Responsible Officer;

The work of the external auditor;

Finding of the Curriculum& Finance Committee

. The work of the School Business Manager and the other Senior Leadership Teams from within
= the academy who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal

L control framewaork
f

- [ ] L 2 » L

The Accountmg Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 20 e and sighed on their behalf, by:

Mr Nick Paviit Mr Jaff Brlndle sdanaenrn
Chalr of Trustees Accounting Officer
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1

STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

b .

T

Ag Accounting Officer of The Sigma Trust previously known as Clacton County High School | have considered
my responsibility to notify the academy trust board of trustees and the Education Funding Agency of material
rrregularlty, lmpropriety and non-compliance with EFA terms and conditions of funding, under the funding
agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
conSIderatlon [ have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2015,

! conﬁrm that | and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use
oﬁ funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2015.

| conﬂrm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered
to; date If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of
trustees and EFA.

-------------------------------------------

Jétt Brmdle
Accpun;mg Officer

12 Decomber 2016
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o STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
S FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

The. Truetees (who act as governors of The Sigma Trust previously known as Clacton County High School and
are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for
preparmg the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Direction
issued by the Education Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards {United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regutations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial staiements for each financial year. Under company law
the Trus’rees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
\new of ‘the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of
resourcés, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial staiemenis, the
Tt ustees are required to:

. .seiect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

. i opserve the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies’ Accounts Direction
L *20)15’(0 2016;

o i make judgments and accountmg estimates that are reasonabEe and prudent,

- state whather applicable UK Accounting Standards {FRS 102} have been followed, subject to any
i tmaterial departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
o _j the charitable company will continue in business.
ol ‘.
The. Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charjtable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
ef the; charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies
Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for
taklng reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

|
The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in iis conduct and operation the charitable company applies
fmanqnat' and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
management They are also responsible for ensuring grants recsived from the EFA/DfE have been applied for
th purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and mtegrlty of the corporate and financial information
|np1uded, on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and
dissetnination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

App:ro:,vepl by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on ! 26 ang sighed on its behalf by:

...............................................

Mr Nlck Pavitt
Chair of Trustees

T
I
i
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!

ENDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
fo SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
Py .

i f [
We have audited the financial statements of The Sigma Trust previously known as Clacton County H|gh School
for the year ended 31 August 2016 which comprise the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and
expendlture account, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting
Standards {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) including FRS 102 "The Financial
Reportlng Standard applicabie in the UK and Republic of Ireland" and the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to
2016 [ssued by the Educatlon Funding Agency.

. ThlS repprt is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of ‘the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable
compgnys members those matters we are reguired to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other
purpose+ To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility o anyone other than
the chamable company and its members, as a body, for our audit worlk, for this report, or for the opinion we have
formed

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF TRUSTEES AND AUDITORS

As expldined more fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of
the aQademy for the purposes of company law) are respensible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for belng satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

O_Ur résponsibility is fo audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable
faw and International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland). Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

SCOFi’E'EOF THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

} An audlt involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or 'error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the academy's
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accountmg estimates made by the Trustees; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition,
we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Trustees' report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based
. on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we
becorhe'aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our
re_port. '

' OPINION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

_ _In our oplnlon the financial statements:

» 1 glve a true and fair view of the state of the chantable company's affairs as at 31 August 2016 and of its
mcoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then
ended

o have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

: Practice; and

-« have been prepared in accordance with the reguirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to 2016 issued by the Education Funding Agency.

OPiNlION ON OTHER MATTER PRESCRIBEDR BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
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]NDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF THE
b SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL

[n our ojornion the information given in the Trustees' report, incorporating the Strategic report, for the financial
year for whlch the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEFTION

'We have nothlng fo report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2008 requires us to

report to you if, in our opinion:

. ; adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
] rrecerved fram branches not visited by us; ar

LI ‘the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; ar

. ! . tcertain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

.. _wie have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

D:fan:ieil Aldworth (Senior statutory auditor)
fo;r anﬁ en behalf of
Grlffm Ghapman

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditors

4 & 5 The Cedars
Apex 12

Qld Ipswrch Road
Coichester
Eésed !

co7 7GR

Df“e; © 15 December 201
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P
:t'

INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE SIGMA
TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING
AGENCY

T
Lot

: 4
In a'cciordance wiih the terms of our engagement letter dated 1 September 2016 and further to the requirements
of thel Education Funding Agency (EFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to 20186, we have
camed out an engagement to obtain Iimited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income
recelved by The Sigma Trust prewcusly known as Clacton Gounty High School during the year 1 September
2015 to’ 31 August 2016 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial
transactncns conform to the authorities which govern them.

v

Th:s report is made solely to The Sigma Trust previously known as Clacton County High School and the EFA in
ac;cerdance with the terms of our engagement [etter. Qur wark has been undertaken so that we might state to
The Slgma Trust previously known as Clacton County High School and the EFA those matters we are required
to state | in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responssbmty to anyone other than The Sigma Trust previously known as Clacton County High School and the
EFA fer our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

. E i
RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY
HIGH*SCHOOL‘S ACCOUNTING OFFICER AND THE REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS

The accountmg officer is respcnsﬂale under the requiramants of The Sigma Trust previcusly known as Clacton
County High School's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 April 2012, and the
Academ es Financial Handbook extant from 1 September 2015, for ensuting that expenditure disbursed and
mcome teceived is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial fransactions conform to the
authcntles which gavern them.
; t .

Our responSIblhtles for thls engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical
guldance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
reqUIrements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 1o 2016, We report to you whether anything has come
toi our, aftention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income ‘received during the year 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016 have neot been applied to purposes
mtended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

| APP’ROACH

' We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 1o 2016 issued by

the EFA We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

Tﬁte, quective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to abtain infermation and
explahations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A Iimited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and

consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
mtght be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

our. engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy s income and expenditure.

' The wark undertaken comprised:

a) - |Obtaining a sufficient understanding of the framework of authorities which apply to'the academy.

by | ' Understanding the system of internal control to secure compliance with the framework of authorities.

¢} Considering the basis upon.which the Accounting Officer is able to make statements on regularity,
-proptiety and compliance in the Financial Statements.
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[NDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO THE SIGMA
TF{UST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOGOL AND THE EDUCATION FUNDING

AGENCY (continued}

d) .t Assessing the risk of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance.
e} - Designing and carrying out tests and drawing of conclusions from this work to provide assurance over
' ‘regularity, propriety and compliance.

chéLUSION

Iny the course of our work, nathing has come to our atiention which suggests that in all material respects the
expend:ture disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2015 to 31 August 2016 have not been
applied to purpeses intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
gevern them.

Dén‘iezi Aldwaorth {Repoerting Accountant)
for and on behalf of
Griffih Ghapman

Chartéréd Accountants

4'& 5 The Cedars
Apex 12

Old ipiswwh Road
Colchester
Essex ;

CO?‘ ?QR

o, 1S Decomber 2016

|
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| STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
R FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

]
t

; Restricted
f Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total Total
o funds funds funds funds funds
- T 2016 2016 2015 2016 2015
R Note £ £ £ £ £
INCOME FROM:
Dbnafions and capital grants 2 - - 32,142 32,142 41,808
Charitablle activities 3 - 9,746,831 - 8,746,831 9,748,339
Other;trsiiding activities 4 - 938,397 - 98,397 75,096
Invesiments 5 18,247 - - 18,247 2,461
T(EJTA%L’:INCOME 18,247 9,845,228 32,142 9,895,617 9,867,702
Py ' i
'EXPENDITURE ON:
Charitable activities - 9,950,720 104,579 10,055,298 9,813,783
P
TQTF&LFEXPENDITURE 8 - 9,950,720 104,579 10,055,298 9,813,783
NET INCOME /
{EXPENDITURE) BEFORE
TRANSFERS 18,247 (105,492) (72,437)  (159,682) 53,919
Transfers between Funds 17 - (88,588) 88,588 - -
NET INGOME /
(EXPENDITURE) BEFORE
pTHER RECOGNISED
GAINS AND LOSSES 18,247 (194,080) 16,151 (159,682) 53,919
Aétuatia) gains/(losses) on
defined benefit pension
sclht?rr;fes 21 - {1,943,000) - (1,943,000) 116,000
NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS 18,247  (2,137,080) 16,151 (2,102,682) 169,979
RECONCILIATION OF FUNDS:
Total fur}ds brought forward 882,502  (1,765,096) 847,0M {35,523) {205,442)
TOTAL FUNDS CARRIED 900,749  (3,902,176) 863,222  (2,138,205) (35,523)

FOE}W.AFID — o e e o
I
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REGISTERED NUMBER: (07926573

THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2016

FIXED ASSETS

; i B
Tangiblg assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Deb’tdrSE
Céséh iat bank and in hand

Note

14

15

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within

one year
) js

NET CURRENT ASSETS

16

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 21

NET LIABILITIES INCLUDING PENSION

SGI—IEEM E LIABILITIES

FUNDS OF THE ACADEMY
‘ F{éstrifctéd income funds:

- Restricted income funds

Res}ridted fixed asset funds

I

17
i7

Réstricted income funds excluding pension

liabiity:
Perision reserve

Totdl restricted income funds
. Uhrestricted income funds
AR

: (I
TOTAL DEFICIT

ot
o

17

2016
g £
863,222
216,111
2,074,136
2,290,247
(744,674)
1,545,573
2,408,795
(4,547,000)
(2,138,205)
644,824
863,222
1,508,046
(4,547,000)
(3,038,954)
900,749
(2,138,205)

2015

£ £

847,071
132,821
2,227,578
2,360,399
(789,993)

1,570,406

2,417,477

(2,453,000)

(35,523)
687,904
847,071
1,534,975
(2,453,000)

(918,025)

882,502

(35,523)

The financial statements were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue, on

l?.humhv Yol6

N
if
P

ROy

R L e R R CE R R RN

Mr Nick Pavitt
Chair iof;Trustees

and are signed on their behalf, by:

The' n%otiés on pages 40 to 61 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

Cash flows from operating activities
Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Dividends, interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Capital grants from DIE/EFA

MNet cash used in investing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward

Cash and cash equivalents carried forward

2016 2015
Note g £
i9 {83,1a1) (12,027)
18,247 2,461
(120,730) (73,861}
32,142 32,170
(70,341) {39,230}
(153,442) {51,257}
2,227,578 2,278,835

20 2,074,136

2,227,578
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THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.1

1.2

1.3

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP {FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2015 to 2016 issued by EFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

The Sigma Trust previeusly known as Clacton County High Scheal constitutes a public benefit entity
as defined by FRS 102.

The financial statements are presented for the individual academy trust.
First time adoption of FRS 102

These financial statements are the first financial statements of The Sigma Trust previously known as
Clacton Gounty High School prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The
Financial Repoerting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland’ (FRS 102) and the
Charities SORFP 2015 (SORP 2015}. The financial statements of The Slgma Trust previously known
as Clacton County High School far the year ended 31 August 2015 were prepared in accordance
with previous Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (UK GAAP") and SORP 2005.

Some of the FRS 102 recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements and
accounting policy choices differ from previous UK GAAP. Consequently, the Trustees have
amended ceriain accounting policies to comply with FRS 102 and SORP 2015.

Reconciliations to previcus UK GAAP for the comparative figures are included in note 28,

Company status

The academy is a company limited by guarantee. The members of the company are the Trustees
named on page 1. In the event of the academy bheing wound up, the liability in respect of the
guarantee is limited to £10 per member of the academy.

Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of
the charitable objects of the academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the Depariment for Education where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific
purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder and include grants from the Department for Education.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOH THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.4 Income

1.5

Alf income is recagnised once the academy has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the
income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably.

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure
account on a recelvable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not
expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is
received in advance of entitlement of receipt, its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as
deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities incorporating
income and expenditure account in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect
of the period is deducied from income and recognised as a liability. Capital grants are recognised
when there is entilement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.
Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund.

Donations are recognised on a receivable hasis where there is certainty of receipt and the amount
can be reliably measured.

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period In which it is receivable and
to the extent the goods have been provided or on completion of the service.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or construclive obligation to transfer economic
benefit o a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in
settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by
aclivity. The costs of each activity are made up cof the iotal of direct costs and shared costs,
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs atlributable to a singte
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attribuiable {0 a single activity are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use,

Costs of generating funds are costs incurred in attracting voluntary income, and those incurred in
trading activities that raise funds.

Charitable activities costs are costs incurred on the academy frust's educational operations,
including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the academy frust apportioned io
charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
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1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.6

1.7

1.8

Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the academy to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
pertiod of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and
have concluded that the academy trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the academy trust's ability to
continue as a going concern, thus they continue 1o adopt the geing concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Furniture and teaching equipment are expensed in the period of acquistion. Such items will generally
cost less than £5,000 per individual item and will include 1CT equipment and ancillary items. All other
assets are capltalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any
provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acguired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and
depreciated aver their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached
to the funding requiting the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted
fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure
account and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged
directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income
and expenditure accouni. Where tangible fixed assels have been acquired with unrestricted funds,
depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not
charged until they are brought inte use,

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable., Sharifalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments, Impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure
account.

Tangible fixed assets are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.
Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated
residual value, over their expected useful lives on the following bases:

Freehold property - 2% straight line
Tenant's alterations - 2% straight line
Fixtures and fittings - 25% straight line
Computer equipment - 33.3% straight line

Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured
reliably by the academy:; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the Bank.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.9 Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged to the Statement of financial activities incorporating
income and expenditure account on a straight line basis over the lease term.

1.10 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recegnised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

f1.,11 Cash at Bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and shori term highly liquid investments with a short
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar
accournt.

1.12 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the
amount of the sefement can be estimated rallably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the
academy anticipates it will pay to seftle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced
payments for the geods or services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is
matetial, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pra-tax
discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

1.13 Financial instruments

The academy only has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial
instrumants.  Basic financial instruments are initially recognised at transaction value and
subsequently measured at their setlement value with the exception of bank loans which are
subsequently measured at amertised cost using the effective interest method.

1.14 Taxation

The academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act
2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corperation tax purposes.
Accordingly, the academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are
applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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'ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

'1.15 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
{"TPS" and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes
and the assets are held separately from those of the academy.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and coniributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the academy in such a way that the pension cost is a
substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are
determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective
unit credit method. As stated in note 21, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is
insufficient information available to use defined henefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as
a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the
period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separafely from those of the academy trust
in separate trustee administerad funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted
at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term
and currency to the liabiliies. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are
updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current
service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments.
They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and
expenditure account and comprises the inierest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest
income aon the scheme asseis, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the
beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference hetween
the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised
in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses
-1.16 Agency arrangements

The academy trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from EFA and funds relating
to the Tendring Primary Partnership from Essex County Council,

For the bursary funds, payments received from EFA and subsequent disbursements to students are
excluded from the statement of financial activities as the trust does not have contral over the
charitable application of funds. The trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its own
administration costs and this is recognised in the statement of financial activities.

For the Tendring Primary Partnership, payments received from Essex Counly Council and
subsequent expenditure are excluded from the staiement of financial activities as the trust does not
have conirol over the charitable application of funds.

The funds received and paid and any balances held for all agency arrangements are disclosed in
notes to the financial statements.
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T

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

1.17 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The academy trust makes estimates and assumpflions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resulis.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

- The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions inciude the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 21, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full
actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2013 has been used by the actuary in valuing the
pensicns lability at 31 August 2016. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll
forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension
liability.

Critical areas of judgement:

- The school is subject to a PFi (Private Finance Initiative) arrangement for its use of the school
premises. The Governors have adopted the accounting treatment as seen in note 24 where this
arrangement is recognised as a financial commitment.

1,18 PFI (Private Finance Initiative) premises

The school has a PFl contract for the use of its school premises, where the responsibility for
maintaining and repairing the buildings lies with the PFI contractor. The rights and ownership of the
premises lies with Essex County Council and the school do not recognise any asset or liability on the
balance sheet. The schcol have the right to occupy the school premises under the terms of the
contract which expires in 2035,

Payments are made during the life of the contract and are charged to revenue as payable.

PF| credits are treated as general revenue.

The PFI arrangement is recognised in other financial commitments at note 24.

Page 45



THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
{A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

2. INCOME FROM DONATIONS AND CAPITAL GRANTS

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total . Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2016 2016 2016 2016 2015
g £ £ £ £
Donations - - - - 9,636
Grants - - 32,142 32,142 32,170
‘Total donations and capital
grants - - 32,142 32,142 41,806

In 2015, oi the total income from donations and capital grants, £ NIL was to unrestricted funds and
£41,806 was to restricted funds.

3. EFUNDING FOR ACADEMY'S EDUCATIONAL OPERATIONS

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

2016 2016 2016 2015

o g g g £
5 DfE/EFA grants

*General annual grant (GAG) - 8,831,755 8,831,755 8,781,070

Other Die/YPLA grants - 724,296 724,296 701,841

Other funding - 190,780 190,780 265,328

- 9,746,831 9,746,831 9,748,339

"+ ln 2015, of the total income from charitable activities, £ NIL was to unresiricted funds and £8,748,339
was to restricted funds.

4. . OTHER TRADING ACTIVITIES

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds funds funds

2016 2016 2016 2015

£ £ £ £

Music and exam fees income - 1,690 1,690 3,617
~Trip income - 52,149 52,149 44,6489
'Class sales - 14,110 14,110 6,432
.Other income - 30,448 30,448 20,398

- 98,397 98,397 75,096

in 2015, of the total income from other trading activities, £ N/L was to unrestricted funds and £75,096 was
‘1o restricied funds.

Page 46



THE SIGMA TRUST PREVIOUSLY KNOWN AS CLACTON COUNTY HIGH SCHOOL
(A company limited by guarantee)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2016

INVESTMENT INCOME
- Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
2016 2016 2016 2015
£ £ £ £

_Investment income - bank interest 18,247 - 18,247 2,461

In 2015, of the total investment income, £2,467 was io unrestricted funds and £ NIL was 1o restricted
funds.

BIRECT COSTS

Educational Total Total

operations 2016 2015

i £ £ £
Teaching and educational support staff costs 57,019 57,019 65,612
Education supplies 271,200 271,200 253,710
Examination fees 159,744 159,744 134,787
Staff development 20,097 20,097 15,500

: Educational consultancy 36,566 36,566 68,905
-Other direct costs 129,432 129,432 80,067
Recruitment and support 8,119 8,119 11,594
Catering 1,140 1,140 1,006
ICT 65,724 65,724 67,460
Other support costs 11,000 11,000 18,966
Wages and salaries 4,852,729 4,852,729 4,701,849
‘National insurance 434,721 434,721 369,243
. Pension cost 671,901 671,901 564,692
' Depreciation 104,579 104,579 109,325

6,823,971 6,823,971 6,462,616
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7. .SUPPORT GOSTS

Educational Total Total

operations 20186 2015

£ £ £

Pension finance cost 94,000 94,000 96,000

; Recruitment and support 197 197 122
: Maintenance of premises and equipment 1,323,190 1,323,190 1,601,775
‘Cleaning 13,610 13,610 12,896
Rent and rates 75,007 75,007 84,620
Insurance 34,092 34,092 32,549
Security and transport : 12,977 12,977 11,304

. Gatering 80,369 80,369 81,806
ACT 2,793 2,793 14,421
: Utilities 171,581 171,581 200,923
'Bank interest and charges 2,262 2,262 648
Other suppori costs 239,274 239,274 137,322
-Governance costs 12,310 12,310 13,445
‘Wages and salaries 831,449 831,449 763,832
‘National insurance 58,055 58,055 48,236

' Pension cost 280,162 280,162 251,168

3,231,328 3,231,328 3,351,167

8. EXPENDITURE

Siaff costs Premises Other costs Total Total
2016 2016 2016 2016 2015
£ £ £ e £
Educational operations:
. Direct costs 5,959,351 13,960 850,660 6,823,971 6,462,616

Suppotrt costs 1,169,666 1,594,248 467,414 3,231,328 3,351,167

7,129,017 1,608,208 1,318,074 10,055,298 9,813,783
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9.

NET INCOMING RESOURCES/(RESOURCES EXPENDED)

This is stated after charging:

Dépreciation of tangible fixed assets:

- owned by the charity

" Auditor's remuneration - audit

Auditor's remuneration - other services

'Operating lease rentals

2016

104,579
8,000
4,295
9,000

2015
£

109,326
8,000
5,445
3,000
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10. STAFF COSTS

- Staff costs were as foliows:

2016 2015

£ £

‘Wages and salaries 5,650,050 5,459,394

_ SPciaI security costs 492,776 417,480

" : Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 952,063 815,850

? 7,094,889 6,692,734

- Supply teacher costs 7,726 6,387
Redundancy/termination payments 26,402 -

7,129,017 6,699,121

' Redundancy payments relate to contractual payments payable as a result of a decision by the Governors
to, terminate a staff member's employment before normal retirement age. Costs are charged on an

“accruals basis to the relevant service line when the Governors are demonstrably committed to the
+termination of employment of an employee.

EThe average number of persons employed by the academy during the year was as follows:

2016 2015
_ No. No.
‘Teachers 90 90
‘Administration and support 113 106
iManagement 10 10
; 213 206
Average headcount expressed as a full time equivalent:

2016 2015
: No. No.
‘Teachers a0 a0
Administration and support 65 60
Management 10 10
: 165 160

EThe number of employees whose employse benefits (excluding employer pension cosis) exceeded

£60,000 was:
2016 2015
No, No.
‘In'the band £60,001 - £70,000 6 &
/In the band £70,001 - £80,000 0 1
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 1 0
In the band £100,001 - £110,000 0 1
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élnfthe band £110,000 - £120,000 1 0

'Seven of the above employees participated in the Teacher's Pension Scheme. The other employees
_participated in the Local Government Pension Scheme.

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management

team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
rcontributions} received by key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was
‘£1,161,266 (2015: £642,789).

TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

iDuring the year retirement benefits were accruing to 3 Trustees (2075 - 3) in respect of defined benefit
pension schemes.

OCne or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
-with the academy trust. The Principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of
services they provide undertaking the roles of principal and other staff members under their contracts of

; employment, and not in respect of their role as Trustees, The value of Trustees' remuneration and other
i benefits was as follows;

P 2016 2015

S £000 £000

Mr Jeff Brindle -Executive Principal Remuneration 110-115 100-105

Pensicn contributions paid 15-20 10-15

Justineg Holmes - Staff Governor Remuneration 45-50 40-45

i Pension contributions paid 5-10 5-10
-Julie Aldis- Staff Governor Remuneration 25-30
Pension contributions paid 0-5

During the year, no Trustees received any benefits in kind (2015 - £NIL).
: During the year, no Trustees received any reimbursement of expenses.

.- TRUSTEES' AND OFFICERS' INSURANCE
In accordance with normal commercial practice the academy has purchased insurance to protect trustees

cand officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy

.1business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year
- yended 31 August 2016 was £1,761 (20715 - £1,7617).

OTHER FINANCE INCOME/COST

- 2016 2015
| £ £
 Interest on pension scheme liabilities (94,000) (96,000)
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14. ' TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Assets
Freehold Tenant's Fixtures and Computer under
property  alterations fittings  equipment conhstruction
; £ £ £ £ £
'Cost / valuation
At 1 September 2015 653,000 44,983 67,180 425,285 25,697
“Additions - - 67,057 53,673 -
At 31 August 2016 653,000 44,983 134,237 478,958 25,697
. i Depreciation
. . At 1 Sepiember 2015 44,622 900 36,847 286,705 -
Charge for the year 13,060 900 28,227 62,392 -
t At 31 August 2016 57,682 1,800 65,074 349,097 -
* Ngt book value
At 31 August 2016 595,318 43,183 69,163 129,861 25,697
- At 31 August 2015 608,378 44,083 30,333 138,580 25,697
Total
. £
" Cost/ valuation
At 1 September 2015 1,216,145
-Additions 120,730
P e
LAt 31 August 2016 1,336,875
. Depreciation
At 1 September 2015 369,074
' Charge for the year 104,579
‘At 31 August 2016 473,653
‘Net book value
" At 31 August 2016 863,222
At 31 August 2015 847,071

‘The governors have based their valuation of the buildings on the insurance value of the premises,
. discounted to take account of the age of the building at the time of transfer in 2012. The trustees are not
‘aware of any material changes 1o this valuation. For the purposes of these financial statements the land is

_deemed to have no commercial value.
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13.

16,

ca

DEBTORS
i 2016 2015
A B £ £
- Other debtors 41,283 27,877
Prepayments and accrued income 174,828 104,944
216,111 132,821
CREDITORS: Amounts falling due within one year
2016 2015
‘ £ £
i Trade creditors 32,930 22,258
. ; Cther taxation and social sectirity 145,753 124,373
| Other creditors 110,271 94,315
- *Accruals and deferred income 455,720 549,047
744,674 789,993
i
2016 2015
. £ £
"Deferred income
Deferred income at 1 September 2015 187,006 22,091
"Resources deferred during the year 163,339 187,006
iAmo'unts released from previous years {187,006) (22,091)
i Deferred income at 31 August 2016 163,339 187,006

17.

At the balance sheet date the academy trust was holding £163,339 received in advance for overfunding in

_connection with the PF1 Budget Share contribution.

' STATEMENT OF FUNDS

Brought Transfers
Forward Income Expenditure infout
: £ £ £ £
E Unrestricted
funds
'General Funds - all
funds 882,502 18,247 -

Gains/
(Losses)

£

Carried
Forward
£

900,749
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1?._

1
i
|
¢

STATEMENT OF FUNDS {continued)

1

" Restricted funds

.Restricted Funds -
all funds 687,904 9,845,228 (9,574,720) (313,588) - 644,824

'Pension reserve  (2,453,000) - (376,000) 225,000 (1,943,000) (4,547,000)

i “ (1,765,096} 9,845,228  (3,950,720) (88,588) (1,943,000) (3,902,1786)

} Restricted fixed asset funds

| Restricted Fixed
Asset Funds - all

funds 847,071 32,142 {104,579) 88,588 - 863,222
: Total restricted
funds (N 8,025) 9,877,370 (10,055,299) - (1,943,000} (3,038,954)

 Total of funds (35,523) 9,805,617 [10,055,299)

b
i
]

{1,943,000) (2,138,205)

- iDuring the year £88,588 was transferred from restricted funds to restricied fixed asset funds regarding

-the amount of GAG used to cover the capital additions not covered by the capital grants.
iThe specific purpases for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

t The academy trust received a donation from the previous Clacton County High Scheol of £880,041 on

" feonversion 1o an academy trust in April 2012, which forms the bulk of its unrestricled reserves. Since
_ .academy conversion the Academy has built a modest restricted reserve of £644,824. This amount is

‘considered appropriate given the uncerfainty with regards to future funding, pupil numbers and PFI
demands, Once a more stable position has been established there are capital projects that the school
would consider again if the reserves still remained at this level.

:Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy was not subject to a limit on the
‘amount of GAG that 1t could carry forward at 31 August 2016.
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19,

20,

"ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS BETWEEN FUNDS

oo "

. Restricted
Sy Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total Total
b funds funds funds funds funds
; 2016 2016 2016 2016 2015
, £ £ £ £ £
: - - - - 847,071
, Tangible fixed assets - - 863,223 863,223 -
‘Current assets 900,749 1,285,400 104,097 2,290,246 2,360,398
;Creditors due within one year - {640,576) {104,098) (744,674) (789,992)
: Provisions for liabilities and
charges - {4,547,000) - (4,547,000} (2,453,000)
900,749 (3,902,176) 863,222 {2,138,205) {35,5623)
j'F{ECON'&':[LIATK)N OF NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS TO NET CASH FLOW
' |FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
. 2016 2015
£ £
: Net (expenditure)/income for the year (as per Statement of
. financial activities) (159,682) 53,919
5 , :Adjustment fbr:
" Depreciation charges 104,579 108,326
- : Dividends, interest and rents from investments (18,247} (2,461)
-{Increase}/decrease in debtors (83,290) 144,555
: Decrease in creditors (45,319) (427,196)
: Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (32,142) (32,170)
i Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable 56,000 45,000
, F Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost 95,000 97,000
* ‘Net cash used in operating activities (83,101) (12,027)
SANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
i 2016 2015
f £ £
* !Cash in hand 2,074,136 2,227,578
Total 2,074,136 2,227,578

21.

" | PENSION COMMITMENTS

 The academy's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teacher's Pension Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
+(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Essex County Council. Both are Multi-employer

. defined benefit pension schemes.
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21.

PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31

‘March 2013.

"Contributions amounting to £110,271 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2016 (2015 - £94,315)
"and are included within creditors.

'Teachers' Pension Scheme

T

Introduction:

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, coniributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by
‘the Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
i Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007,

. lautomatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract, although

" 'tHey are able to opt out,

. -The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you ga' basis — these contributions

‘along with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
_beneiits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

) ?V;aluation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

:Not less than every four years the Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a
formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and
:Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the
‘level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value
 of future’ costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was

‘ -carned out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations, and

: Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by the Depariment for Education

‘ fon 9 June 2014, The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

.« employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay, including a 0.08% employer
administration charge (currently 14.1%)

. ;e total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
o service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future coniributions

together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional
past service deficit of £14,800 million

"« an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations
e the assumed real raie of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of
real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

:During the previous year the employer contribution rate was 14,1%. The TPS valuation for 2012

- idetermined an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September 2015. The next valuation of

' ~ the TPS will be as at March 2016, whereupon the employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed

-and will be payable from 1 April 2018.

jThe employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £671,901 (2015 - £564,692).

I .
. 1A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website

(www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2014/06/publication-of-the-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has
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fpijENsmN COMMITMENTS (continued)

: “accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set

out above the information available on the scheme.

Loca] Government Pension Scheme

L

; »The LGPS is a funded defined benefit scheme, with assets held in separate trustee-administered funds.

: The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2016 was £296,000 (2015 - £267,000), of which
‘employer's contributions totalled £225000 (2015 - £205,000) and employees' contributions totalled

- £71,000 (2015 - £62,000). The agreed confribution rates for future years are 12.3% for employers and 5.5

- 12.5% for employees.

- ‘;P;érliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the

revent of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme lizbilittes would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,
"Essex Pension Fund

’ Principal actuarial assumptions:

. 1 1‘ 2016 2015
: Discount rate for scheme liabilities 2.20 % 4,00 %

: ;Rate of increase in salaries 4.10 % 4.40 %
‘Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation 2.30 % 2.60 %

' Inflation assumption (CP) 2.30 % 2.60 %
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 60.00 % 60.00 %

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations cn retirement age 65 are:

. 2016 2015
-Retiring today
‘Males 22.9 22.8
- 'Females 25.3 25.2
: ‘Retiring in 20 years
¢ ‘Males 25.2 25.1
.Females 27.7 27.6
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. 'PENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

‘The academy's share of the assets in the scheme was:

i
'

Fair value at Fair value al

: 31 August 31 August

: 2016 2015

! £ £

: Equities 1,556,000 1,124,000
,Alternative assets and other managed funds 216,000 125,000

- iProperty 251,000 200,000
1 Gilts 82,000 70,000
* 'Cther bonds . 102,000 168,000
© . 1Cash 69,000 43,000

' :Total market value of assets 2,270,000 1,730,000

s §Tihe actual return on scheme assets was £279,000 (2075 - £77,000).

t * *The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure
_ account are as follows:

As resiated

|
Coa 2016 2015
. t £ £
: Current service cost (net of employee contributions) (280,162) (251,168)
Net interest cost (94,000} (86,000)
- Administration expense {1,000) (1,000)
" Total (375,162) (348,168)

.. .Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:

As resiated

. 2016 2015
R £ £
© | Opening defined benefit obligation 4,183,866 3,855,698

. 1Current service cost 280,162 251,168
! ‘Interest cost 168,000 156,000
 Contributions by employees 71,000 62,000
rActuarial losses/{gains) 2,148,000 {99,000)
_Benefits paid (34,000) {42,000)

: E EC[osing defined benefit obligation 6,817,028 4,183,866
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23,

i
1

;EENSION COMMITMENTS (continued)

; Movements in the fair value of the academy's share of scheme assets:

As restated

2016 2015

£ £

Openmg fair value of scheme assets 1,730,866 1,428,698
lnterest income 74,000 60,000

‘ ' Actuarial gains and (losses) 205,000 17,000
* . Contributions by employer 224,162 208,168
‘ Contributions by employees ' 71,000 62,000
. Benefits paid {34,000) {42,000)
Administration expenses {1,000) (1,000)

; Closing fair value of scheme assets 2,270,028 1,730,866

i e e -

1

' OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

‘At 31 August 2016 the total of the Academy trust's future minimum lease payments under non-canceilable
operatmg leases was:

2016 2015

: £ £
Amountis payabie:

- Within 1 year - 9,000

:Between 1 and 5 years - 8,000

. Total - 18,000

:OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

L I Clacton County High School has a continuing PFI commitment relating to its school premises. The annual

? -cantribution for the current year was £1,244,146 (2015 : £1,219,508).

‘The Governors' liability from school revenue towards this figure for the year ended 31 August 2016 will be
£887,657. This commitment is expected to coniinue for the life of the PFI agreement which expires in
*2035. The annual commitment is dependent on elements ouiside of the school's control and therefore
.cannot be accurately disclosed further than the forthcoming year.

! 5

’ 5 MEMBERS' LIABILITY

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
‘event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a
member such amount as may be required, not exceeding £ 10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a member.
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26.

27.

|
I
™
i
'

. {RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

E:The following related party transactions took place in the period of accounts:

'Clacton. Caunty High School is a membsr of The North East Essex Education Partnership (NEEEF)
‘together with 5 other acadamies. NEEEP is a company incorporated in England and Wales limited by
'guarantee providing support to its member academies.

: During the period Clacton County High School was charged £5,944 (2015: £25,810) from the company for

! 'educational services provided at cost.

:CIacton County High School alse received £12,996 {2015: £12,590} from NEEEP during the year in
‘respect of central finance support cross charges and re-imbursements for seconded teachers.
jA"it the year end, the school was due £12,078 (2015 : £Nil) from NEEEP.

During the year, a number of close family members of trustees and key management were remunerated

i respect of services they provide undertaking their roles as staff members under their contracts of
. ‘employment. The individuals concerned are; Mrs E Markham, wife of the Business Manager, employed
~as a part time HLTA on local government band 4; Mrs J Heighway, wife of an Assistant Principal,

employed as a part time PE teacher on the upper pay range and Mr T Holmes, the father of a staff
‘governor, who is employed on a casual basis as an exams invigilator on local government band 1.

. 'In entering into the transactions above, the trust has complied with the requirements of the EFA and the
; Academies Financial Handbook.

 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

! on 1 September 20186, the scheol converted 1o a MAT (Multi Academy Trust) as a partnership of six

'academies in North East Essex. There was no financial effect on the year ended 31 August 20186,

, AGENCY ARRANGEMENTS

' The éi:ademy trust distributes 16-19 busary funds to students as an agent for EFA. In the accounting year

., ending 31 August 2016 the trust received £46,381 (2015: £56,189) and disbursed this from the fund. An

ramount of £7,396 (2015: £Nil) is included in accruals and deferred income relating to undistibuted funds

* ‘that is repayable to Essex County Council. Income and expenditure is included in the accounts.

‘The academy trust distributes Tendring Primary Partnership funds as an agent for Essex County Counail.
i1n the accounting year ending 31 August 2016 the trust received £45,424 (2015: £50,000) and disbursed
1£19,500 (2015: £53,444) from the fund. An amount of £11,380 (2015: £37,303) is included in accruals
‘and deferred income relating to undistibuted funds that is repayable to Essex County Council.
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28,

{FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF FRS 102

"It is the first year that the Academy Trusi has presented its financial statements under SORP 2015 and

,FRS 102. The fol]owmg disclosures are required in the year of transition. The last financial statements

- 'prepared under previous UK GAAP were for the year ended 31 August 2015 and the date of transition to
*FRS 102 and SORP 2015 was therefore 1 September 2014. As a consequence of adopting FRS 102 and
: SORP 2015, a number of accounting policies have changed to comply with those standards.

The policies applied under the academy's previous accounting framework are not materially different to

"~ FRS 102 and have not impacted on funds or net income/expenditure.
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